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Stately old St. John T s Episcopal Church stands upon a six-acre tract 
enclosed by a stone fence. It is approached by a driveway which 
forks at the front steps and encircles the building to reach the 
historic burial ground located in a magnificent grove of magnolias 
at the rear.

Considered as possibly the last of the plantation churches in 
Tennessee, St. John T s is a result of a labor of love of the Polk 
family, prominent early settlers of the area. Although several 
brbTfiers contributed financially and materially to the building of 
the church, it was Leonidas, who was to later reach fame as a Con­ 
federate general, who had the dream, gave the land, drew the plans 
and supervised construction. All the work appears to have been done 
by Polk hands. The site was cleared by Polk slaves; the foundation 
stones were quarried nearby and hauled by Polk teams; the heavy 
timbers for beams and rafters were hewn from trees on the plantation; 
the master brickmason was a Polk slave; the bricks were made on the m 
place; and the nails were forged by a Polk blacksmith. Inside, the 
balconyj altar, communion rail, andLreredos werejimde from a large 

_ ___ " "^ree which had stood on the site of the church.

Begun in the summer of 1839, the exterior was finished by the fall
of 18M-0, but the interior was not completed until the summer of
18M-2. The bell was purchased and placed in the tower in 18M-9.
Of simple Go±kic architecture, the building has a seating capacity n
of about five .Jiundred, including a small-, end-gallery. The church
measures sjLx±yj-J:ive by forty-one, feet, with a sixteen-foot vestry
room in the rear, : and a,fifty-foot tower at the front. The
sixteen-inch thick exterior brick walls are supported by four °
buttresses on each s£de. Pointed arches were used over the doorway z
and the muilioned windows. "*---- </>

The church today is little changed from the day it was consecrated. 
The interior is very simple with white plastered walls. The pew 
arrangement is unusual, as there are only two side aisles and no 
center aisle in the nave. The chancel is small and plain, and the 
reredos is ornamented only with carved oak leaves.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The significance of St. John T s Church is two -fold. Not only was 
it of importance militarily during the Civil War, it is an out­ 
standing example of the plantation churches of Tennessee and the 
South during the pre-Civil War days when provisions were made by 
landowners for the religious welfare of their slaves as well as 
their own families.

William Polk, a Revolutionary War soldier from North Carolina, 
accumulated vast amounts of land in Tennessee until in 1819 he 
was one of the largest land owners in Tennessee with 100,000 acres, 
including a choice tract of over 5,000 acres in Maury County. 
Several of his sons settled there. Leonidas Polk was primarily 
responsible for the erection of St. John T s. A graduate of West 
Point who entered the Episcopal ministry, he had held services in 
his home, but he wanted a: church for the Polk families, their 
slaves and their neighbors. At the consecration service, many 
slaves participated in the services, singing louder and with more 
fervor than the whites. Colored people were numbered among 
communicants along with white people. In the cemetery, 'graves" 
of the masters and those of the slaves many times are side-by-side, 
emphasizing the relationship of affection and responsibility on 
one side and service and faithfulness on the other.

t. John T s ceased to function as an active parish. On 
Whitsunday each year the Diocese of Tennessee sponsors a pilgrimage 
to the church, with services being conducted. Interested groups 
are permitted to tour the building upon application to the St. 
John T s Memorial Association.

During the Civil War, services were discontinued, and on one 
occasion, troops under Brig. -Gen. Don Carlos Buell forced entry 
into the church, vandalizing and causing heavy damage. Fighting 
occurred around St. John T s in November, 1864- , and it was converted 
into a temporary hospital. En route to the impending battle of 
Franklin, Confederate Maj.-Gen. Patrick R. Cleburne of Hood T s 
army paused at St. John T s. He declared it to be the most beautiful
spot he had ever seen, and expressed the wish that if he were to 
be killed in the battle that he be buried there. He was killed 
in battle at Franklin on November 30, 186M-, and after being buried 
a few days at Rose Hill Cemetery in Columbia, his body, along with
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8. Significance (continued)

those of Generals Strahl and Granbury, was reburied at St. John T s. 
General Leonidas Polk himself was killed on Pine Mountain in Georgia 
on June 14-, 186M-, and had been buried in Augusta. Despite his desire 
to be buried at St. John's, as expressed in his will written in 18M-7, 
the Episcopal Diocese of Louisiana claimed his body in 19M-5, and he 
was reburied in New Orleans.

During the post-war period, the Confederate generals who were buried at 
St. John's were removed to other locations, but their grave-sites have 
never been used again.


